
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

CABINET MEMBER SIGNING 
 

Friday, 27th October, 2023, 1.30 pm - George Meehan House, 
294 High Road, London, N22 8JZ Click  Here to watch the 
meeting live. 

 
 

Councillors: Zena Brabazon – Cabinet Member for Children Schools and 
Families 

 
 
 
1. FILMING AT MEETINGS   

 
Please note that this meeting may be filmed or recorded by the Council for 
live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s internet site or by anyone 
attending the meeting using any communication method. Although we ask 
members of the public recording, filming or reporting on the meeting not to 
include the public seating areas, members of the public attending the meeting 
should be aware that we cannot guarantee that they will not be filmed or 
recorded by others attending the meeting. Members of the public participating 
in the meeting (e.g. making deputations, asking questions, making oral 
protests) should be aware that they are likely to be filmed, recorded or 
reported on.  By entering the meeting room and using the public seating area, 
you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images 
and sound recordings. 
 
The chair of the meeting has the discretion to terminate or suspend filming or 
recording, if in his or her opinion continuation of the filming, recording or 
reporting would disrupt or prejudice the proceedings, infringe the rights of any 
individual or may lead to the breach of a legal obligation by the Council. 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a 
matter who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is 
considered: 
 
(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest 
becomes apparent, and 
(ii) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must 
withdraw from the meeting room. 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MmYxZjFjODgtYWI5ZC00ZDAwLTlhYzItYTlhMWZhYzlhNTg2%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%226ddfa760-8cd5-44a8-8e48-d8ca487731c3%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%2223a26c29-9165-4501-876b-873e129c6319%22%7d


 

 
A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which 
is not registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a 
pending notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 
days of the disclosure. 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests 
are defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of 
Conduct 
 

4. URGENT BUSINESS   
 
The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of Urgent Business. 
(Late items of Urgent Business will be considered under the agenda item 
where they appear.  
 

5. DEPUTATIONS / PETITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / QUESTIONS   
 
To consider any requests received in accordance with Part 4, Section B, 
paragraph 29 of the Council’s constitution.  
 

6. CAMPSBOURNE PRIMARY SCHOOL - PHASE 3 EXTERNAL ENVELOPE 
AND BUILDING SERVICES IMPROVEMENT WORKS – AWARD OF 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT TO COMPLETE WORKS IN A LIVE 
SCHOOL ENVIRONMENT  (PAGES 1 - 8) 
 

7. NORTH HARRINGAY PRIMARY SCHOOL - URGENT  CONDITION 
WORKS - CONSTRUCTION WORKS CONTRACT AWARD  (PAGES 9 - 16) 
 

8. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 
Note from the Democratic Services and Scrutiny Manager 
 
Items 9 to 10 allow for consideration of exempt information in relation to items 
6 to 7. 
 
TO RESOLVE 
 
That the press and public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting as 
items 23 to 27  contain exempt information as defined under paragraphs 3 
and 5, Part 1, Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972: 
 
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding that information). 
 
Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be 
maintained in legal proceedings. 
 

9. EXEMPT - CAMPSBOURNE PRIMARY SCHOOL - PHASE 3 EXTERNAL 
ENVELOPE AND BUILDING SERVICES IMPROVEMENT WORKS – 



 

AWARD OF CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT TO COMPLETE WORKS IN A 
LIVE SCHOOL ENVIRONMENT  (PAGES 17 - 20) 
 

10. EXEMPT - NORTH HARRINGAY PRIMARY SCHOOL - URGENT  
CONDITION WORKS - CONSTRUCTION WORKS CONTRACT AWARD  
(PAGES 21 - 26) 
 
 

 
Ayshe Simsek, Democratic Services & Scrutiny Manager 
Tel – 020 8489 2919 
Fax – 020 8881 5218 
Email: ayshe.simsek@haringey.gov.uk 
 
Fiona Alderman 
Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring Officer) 
George Meehan House, 294 High Road, Wood Green, N22 8JZ 
 
Thursday, 19 October 2023 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
Page 1 
 

 
 
 
Report for Cabinet Member for Children, School and Families, scheduled for 3rd August – 
30th November 2023  
 
Item number: TBC 
 
Title: Campsbourne Primary School – Phase 3 External Envelope and Building 
Services Improvement works – Award of Construction Contract to complete works  
 

Report authorised by:  
Ann Graham, Director of Children’s Services 
 
  
Lead Officer:  Claire Barnes, Major Projects Delivery Manager 
 
Ward affected: Hornsey 
 
Report for Key/Non-Key Decision: Key Decision 

 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 

 
1.1 To request approval to award a contract to Mulalley & Co. Limited to undertake Phase 

3 Remaining Works pursuant to Contract Standing Order 10.01.1 (a) and 16.02. 
 

1.2 Pursuant to Contract Standing Order 9.07.3 to approve the issuance of a letter of intent. 
 
2. Cabinet Member Introduction  

2.1 As this report is being presented to Cabinet Member for Children, Schools and Families 
for a decision, Cabinet Member introduction is not required. 

 
3. Recommendations 
 
3.1 For Cabinet Member for Children’s Schools and Families pursuant to Contract 

Standing Order (CSO) 16.02 to: 

 

3.2 Approve an Award to Mulalley & Co. Limited to undertake Phase 3c remaining works 

at Campsbourne Primary School based on their tender price of £827,156.77. 

 
3.3 Approve a client contingency as set out in Part B of this report which will be strictly 

managed under change control governance arrangements. This is in addition to the 
award value noted in 3.2. Refer to Part B section 3 for the contingency value and total 
award value. 

  

Page 1 Agenda Item 6



 

 
 
Page 2 

 

3.4 To note Phases 3a & 3b previously awarded to Mulalley & Co. Limited as a waiver of 

contract standing orders under delegated powers.  

 

3.5 To note a total award for phases 3a, 3b and 3c up to the aggregated value of 

£1,285,794.48, excluding phase 3c contingency. 

 

 
3.6 Approve the issuance of a letter of intent for up to a value of £100,000. 
 
4. Reasons for decision  
 
4.1 The original contract for these works at Campsbourne Primary School was terminated 

by the Council on 5 April 2023. Further details are set out in the exempt part of the 
report.  

 
4.2 In order to maintain site set-up, security and scaffolding a contract was awarded to 

Mulalley & Co. Limited under delegated approval as Phase 3a.  Subsequently, an 
additional waiver for Phase 3b works was approved under delegated authority and a 
contract issued to the contractor. Refer to paragraph 6.6 for more details regarding 
scope of work. The final remaining works contract is under consideration in this award 
report, Phase 3c.  

 
4.3 The construction contract award for Phase 3c is to achieve the following: 

 

 Replacement of remaining windows  

 Window repairs and decorations 

 Design and adaptation of a new reception entrance area 

 Rebuilding of boundary wall and fencing 

 Roof repairs 

 Rain water guttering and downpipe repairs  

 External fabric repairs and decoration 

 New external ramp 

 Extract fan installation 

 Insulation to heating pipework  

 Lightning protection 
 
4.4 Due to the project’s urgent nature a direct award is considered to offer the Council best 

overall value. Mulalley & Co. Limited are a local supplier and LCP Major Works 
Framework Supplier with a proven track record and have the capacity to undertake the 
work. The price submitted has been evaluated against market rates and considered 
acceptable. The direct award was raised via the HPCS. 

 
4.5 Due to the above a waiver is requested under CSO 10.01.2(d)ii, i.e., that it is in the 

Council’s overall interest. 
 

Page 2



 

 
 
Page 3 

 

4.6 A Cabinet Member decision is required in September 2023 to enable timely 
mobilisation and facilitate procurement of longer lead in materials as soon as possible, 
which will offer greater likelihood of achieving maximum grant funding available.   

 
 
 
5. Alternative Options Considered 
 
5.1 Do nothing – a decision not to support this award of construction contract will result in 

the Councils failure to suitably maintain its education estate by undertaking essential 
condition improvements. This would increase the likelihood of reactive works which will 
create greater disruption and cost to the council and potentially result in the loss of 
education days. All of which would undoubtedly impact on the quality of teaching and 
learning. 

 
5.2 A mini competition (via the DPS or LCP Major Works Framework) was discounted as 

it was felt negotiating with a contractor would be most efficient due to the urgent need 
to replace the previous contractor. An independent quantity surveyor and contract 
administrator is appointed to evaluate all costs to ensure value for money. 

 
6. Background Information 

 
6.1  London Borough of Haringey (Haringey) are seeking to identify and address building 

condition and suitability issues across the Education/schools estate. 
 
6.2 Due to the urgent nature of the project and termination of its previous contractor it was 

essential to mobilise a contractor in April 2023 in order to facilitate completion of the 
original Campsbourne scheme. The original scheme was executed in 2 phases (Phase 
1 – Heating distribution system upgrade, loft insulation, flat roof works, masonry repairs 
and ground floor window replacement works; Phase 2 – Building Fabric, external and 
mechanical works). The original phase 2 contract is incomplete, which phase 3 
addresses. 

 
6.3 To achieve this, the work was divided into 3 packages.  Mulalley & Co. Limited, who 

are a supplier on the Council’s London Construction Framework and a local supplier to 
Haringey, were approached and confirmed they had sufficient resources at short notice 
to mobilise to meet our programme requirements. 

 

6.4 Phase 3a & 3b were approved as a waiver of contract standing orders under delegated 
approval.  

 

6.5 Phase 3a is currently ongoing. This phase was for the take over and hire of scaffolding 
already erected on site and to manage site security and set up prior to the 2 contracts 
commencing.  

 

6.6 Phase 3b is currently on site. This work includes window replacement, external 
decorations, mechanical and electrical works and Pendock ducting. 

 

Page 3



 

 
 
Page 4 

 

6.7 Phase 3c works are set out in paragraph 4.3. 
 

6.8 All works have been specified and measured by independent design and cost 
consultants to ensure best value for the Council against pre-determined market rates. 

 
6.9 Budget information by phase is set out in Part B of the report.   
    
7. Contribution to Strategic Outcomes 

 
7.1  This project proposal supports outcomes as outlined in the Corporate Plan 22-23 and 

23/24. All projects commissioned by Officers of the Council are expected to align with 
this plan and will be reflected in key capital project documentation such as project 
briefs, design briefs, business cases, project initiation documents (PID) and award 
reports. 

 
7.2  The relevant Borough Outcome for this project is: People - our vision is a Haringey 

where strong families, strong networks and strong communities nurture all residents to 
live well and achieve their potential.  

 
7.3  It’s acknowledged the borough plan has been superseded by the Corporate Plan 

2022/23 – 2023/24. The client team are presently realigning the previous objectives of 
the Borough Plan with this. 

 
7.4 Campsbourne Primary School falls into wave 1 (priority 1) of the Children’s Service’s 

asset management plan (CSAMP) and is therefore procured in accordance with the 
priorities set out in the Children’s Capital Programme.  

 
7.5 As part of the works undertaken during the first phase at Campsbourne School energy 

efficiency improvements were made with a contribution from the Government Salix 
Programme. This has supported the Borough’s carbon reduction and climate change 
ambition. 

 
8. Carbon and Climate Change  

 
8.1. This project will bring a number of benefits to the school and the council, with the 

primary objective of providing improved educational environments for Children in line 
with Haringey’s Corporate Plan. Along with improving educational outcomes, this 
project will significantly reduce the risk of a health and safety incident or school closure 
through condition failure, such as window deterioration or roof leaks. The project will 
also help the school reduce its energy demands and relieve some budgetary pressure.  

 
8.2 Alongside this it will support the Borough’s carbon reduction and climate change 

ambition by delivering approx. 20.99 tCO2pa carbon reduction through the installation 
of energy efficient measures such as double glazing. This work also benefits the 
Council in reducing the reactive maintenance requirements at the school in future by 
economically fixing the root cause of the condition issues within a single project whilst 
avoiding additional temporary repairs costs. 

 

Page 4



 

 
 
Page 5 

 

8.3 Under the previous phases of work, mentioned in part 6.2 of this report, the school has 
benefitted from LED lighting, increased loft insulation and a new heating system with 
energy efficient boilers, a Building Management System (BMS) to monitor and manage 
mechanical and electrical services and insulated pipework.  

 
 
9. Statutory Officers comments (Chief Finance Officer, Procurement, Corporate 

Governance, Equalities). 
 

9.1 Finance 
 
9.1.1 The recommendation of the report is to accept a tender from Mullaley of £0.827m, 

plus a contingency as set out in the part b report. The overall cost of the 
recommendation (plus contingency amount set out in part b) can be contained within 
the approved Children’s Services capital programme for 2023/24. Should there be 
any slippage in the timing of the expenditure, the resources to complete the scheme 
will need to be carried over into 2024/25 as a commitment. 

 
The overall cost of this phase of the scheme at Campsbourne Primary School is 
£4,899,878.87. This is composed of the contract award sum plus professional fees, 
project management and disbursements. These are set out in the table below by 
financial years: 

  
Financial 
Year (FY) 

£m 

2019/20 0.457 

2020/21 0.277 

2021/22 1.131 

2022/23 1.481 

2023/24 1.488 

2024/25 63  
                   4.899m  

 
9.2 Procurement 

 
9.2.1 Strategic Procurement (SP) note that this report relates to the approval of award to 

undertake phase 3c remaining works at Campsbourne Primary School by Mulalley & 
Co. Limited  

 
9.2.2 Contract Standing Order (CSO) 9.01.1 has been waived off due to the urgency of the 

required works. 
 
9.2.3 SP support the recommendation in section 3 above.  
 
9.3  Legal 

 
9.3.1 The Head of Legal and Governance  (Monitoring Officer)  has been consulted in the 

preparation of this report. 
 

Page 5



 

 
 
Page 6 

 

9.3.2  The works are below the threshold where the tendering requirements set out in the 
Public Contracts Regulations 2015 apply. Under CSO 9.01.1 contracts which have 
an estimated value of £500,000 should be let following publication of a tender advert, 

 
9.3.3  A waiver of CSO 9.01.1 is sought on the basis that this is in the Council’s overall 

interest, as allowed under CSO 10.01.2 d) (ii). 
 
9.3.4  For contracts which are Key Decisions, a decision in respect of waiver and award 

would normally be approved by Cabinet under CSO 10.01.1 a (waiver) and CSO 
9.07.1 d) (award). However, in between meetings of the Cabinet, the Leader may take 
any such decision or allocate to the Cabinet Member with the relevant portfolio (CSO 
16.02). 

 
9.3.5 The award of the contract will be a Key Decision and, as such, will need to comply 

with the Council’s governance processes in respect of Key Decisions including 
publication in the Forward Plan. 

 
9.3.5  The Cabinet Member for Children, Schools and Families has power to approve the 

award of the contract and also the issue of a letter of intent up to the value of 10% of 
the contract. 

 
9.3.6  The Head of Legal and Governance (Monitoring Officer) confirms that there are no 

legal reasons preventing the Cabinet Member for Children, Schools and Families from 
approving the recommendations in this report. 

 
9.4  Equality  

9.4.1  The Council has a Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act (2010) to have 
due regard to the need to:  

  
 Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct 

prohibited under the Act.  
 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share those protected 

characteristics and people who do not.  
 Foster good relations between people who share those characteristics and 

people who do not.  
  

 The three parts of the duty applies to the following protected characteristics: age, 
disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy/maternity, race, religion/faith, sex and 
sexual orientation. Marriage and civil partnership status applies to the first part of the 
duty.  

 
9.4.2  The proposed decision is to approve the contract award to Mulalley & Co Limited, to 

undertake Phase 3 remaining works to the main building at Campsbourne Primary 
School. This will affect roughly 400 students and members of staff. The remaining 
works in Phase 3 include external fabric and window repairs and decorations, external 
ramp, electrical connection works, pipework insultation, reception forming external 
opening, new external door and fitout. It is expected that this decision will not have 
any additional negative impact on accessibility. The works will lead to improved health 

Page 6



 

 
 
Page 7 

 

and safety and accessibility for all students and members of staff – as a new ramp 
will be formed as part of the new reception entrance and the creation of a new 
reception entrance via Nightingale Lane will reduce public access to the remainder of 
the school site. The remaining works will seek to address accessibility into the Junior 
block.  

 
9.4.3  The proposed decision is expected to support improved educational outcomes for all 

students, including those from minority ethnic backgrounds, with special education 
needs and who receive support through the pupil premium, who are more likely to 
face barriers to education. No negative consequences are identified for those who 
share a protected characteristic, and it is concluded that the works will have a wholly 
positive impact by improving the health and safety of Campsbourne Primary School, 
including attendees and staff with protected characteristics under the Equality Act 
2010. The proposed decision will therefore support equality of opportunity across all 
pupils. 

  
9.4.4 Specific consideration for the duration of the works will be given to the following: 

 

 Disruption to the school and the effect on children from different cultural 
backgrounds 

 Impact of the works on the school, particularly ethnic groups 

 Decanting of classrooms to ensure children do not miss out on levels of 
learning  

 
9.4.5 As an organisation carrying out a public function on behalf of a public body, Mulalley 

& Co. Limited will be obliged to have due regard for the need to achieve the three 
aims of the Public Sector Equality Duty as stated above. Appropriate contract 
management arrangements will be established to ensure that the delivery of the major 
works does not result in any preventable or disproportionate inequality. 

 
10. Use of Appendices 

 
10.1 Appendix A – Part B 

 

11. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1995 

 
11.1  List of background documents:  

 
 This report contains exempt and non-exempt information. Exempt information is 

under the following categories (identified in amended Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972): Information relating to financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the statutory holding that information). 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
Page 1 
 

 
 
Report for Cabinet Member for Children, Schools and Families scheduled for 1st 
September  – 31st October 2023  
 
Title: North Harringay Primary School – Urgent Condition Works – Award of Construction 
Contract 
 
Report authorised by: Ann Graham, Director of Children’s Services 
  
Lead Officer:  Claire Barnes, Major Projects Delivery Manager 
 
Ward affected: Harringay 
 
Report for Key/Non-Key Decision: Key Decision 

 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 

 
1.1 To request approval to award a contract as part of the Children’s Capital Programme to 

undertake external condition works at North Harringay Primary School and to approve 
issuance of a letter of intent. 

 
2. Cabinet Member Introduction  

2.1 As this report is being presented to Cabinet Member for Children, Schools and Families 
for a decision, Cabinet Member introduction is not required. 

 
3. Recommendations 

 
For Cabinet Member for Children’s Schools and Families pursuant to Contract Standing 
Order (CSO) 16.02 to: 

 
3.1 Approve an award to Contractor B (named in Part B exempt information) up to the 

value of £2,130,187.00. 

3.2 Approve a client contingency as set out in Part B of this report which will be strictly 
managed under change control governance arrangements.  

 
3.3 Approve the issuance of a letter of intent for up to 10% of the contract value, as set out 

in Part B of this report. 
 

4. Reasons for decision  
 

4.1 A major review of the condition and suitability of the Children’s Services estate has been 
undertaken which has informed the Children’s Service’s asset management plan 
(CSAMP).  This identified condition and suitability deficiencies in the primary, secondary, 
and wider Children’s Service estate need addressing in the short, medium, and long-
term.   

 

Page 9 Agenda Item 7



 

 
 
Page 2 

 

4.2 North Harringay Primary School is high priority for major works due to issues relating to 
health and safety or the school is at risk of school closure. 

 
4.2 In 2019 a commission was given to further investigate and address urgent works relating 

to the condition of building services. This construction contract award is to achieve the 
following:  
 

 Replacement of windows  

 Repairs to stone and ceramic tile cills 

 External masonry brickwork and repointing  

 Localised roof repairs and rainwater goods repairs to make full use of the 
scaffolding 

 Installation of pigeon deterrent system 
 

4.3 This construction award report requests a decision on the procurement of a contractor to 
undertake all the external envelope works identified, designed and approved by the 
project sponsor. 

 
4.4 There is no Cabinet Meeting scheduled in August. A Cabinet Member decision is 

required in August 2023 to enable timely mobilisation and facilitate procurement of 
longer lead in materials as soon as possible which will offer greater likelihood of 
achieving maximum grant funding available.  

 
5. Alternative Options Considered 

 
5.1 Do nothing – a decision not to support this award of construction contract will result in 

the Councils failure to suitably maintain its education estate by undertaking essential 
condition improvements. This would increase the likelihood of reactive works which will 
create greater disruption and cost to the council and potentially result in the loss of 
education days. All of which would undoubtedly impact on the quality of teaching and 
learning. 

 
5.2 Delaying a decision further would add additional time to the programme and cost to the 

council. Not being able to award a contract and place orders at the earliest opportunity 
would increase the risk of bidders not holding their price which could be impacted by 
inflation. The tender is based on bidders holding their price for up to XX weeks which 
this decision sits within. 
 

6. Background Information 
 
6.1  London Borough of Haringey (Haringey) are seeking to identify and address building 

condition and suitability issues across the Education/schools estate. 
 

6.2 Initial condition and suitability surveys followed by comprehensive feasibility studies 
have evolved an extensive Children’s Capital Programme which seeks to support 
essential condition improvements across the education estate. 

 
6.3 From this data, North Harringay Primary School was considered high priority. 

Page 10



 

 
 
Page 3 

 

 

6.4 This condition project will bring a number of benefits to the school and the council, with 
the primary objective of providing improved educational environments for Children in line 
with Haringey’s Corporate Plan. Along with improving educational outcomes, this project 
will significantly reduce the risk of a health and safety incident or school closure through 
condition failure, such as window deterioration or roof leaks. The project will also help 
the school reduce its energy demands and relieve some budgetary pressure.  

 
6.5 Procurement of a contractor has been undertaken on a traditional basis, with the works 

designed to Stage 4 of the Royal Institute of British Architects (RIBA) Plan. The form of 
contract will be JCT Standard Building Contract with Quantities 2016. 

 

6.6 As part of the RIBA stage 2-4 design the following surveys and investigations have been 
completed: 

 

 Condition and suitability study 

 CCTV drainage 

 Land surveys 

 Window and external door surveys 

 Mechanical Ventilation survey 

 Structural survey 

 Lead survey 

 Condition survey report 

 Fire Risk Assessment 

 Lift condition report 

 Arboriculture Survey Report 

 Catering consultant report 

 Damp survey report 
 

6.7 Whilst a range of surveys have been carried out in the preparation of the tender 
documents for this refurbishment scheme, they will never provide absolute certainty as 
to the condition of the building. Therefore, a contingency has been allowed for in the 
budget and its use will be carefully monitored and reported upon during the projects 
progress. 
 

6.8 A building control application has been submitted for the scope of works which has been 
examined and approved by Haringey Council Building Control on 10 January 2023. 

 

6.10 Following completion of a full RIBA 4 design, the tender was issued to the construction   
market via the HPCS, under the London Construction Programme (LCP) Framework.  
Under Lot 2.1b (Education and Leisure – North London - £1m-£5m) five contractors were 
invited, with two tenders received on the 21st June 2023. Tenders were evaluated on a 
60% cost and 40% quality by an independent evaluation panel. Arithmetical adjustments 
were applied to the tenders during the clarification process with the result of the 
assessments shown below:  
 

Page 11



 

 
 
Page 4 

 

Tenderer Price Score 
(60%) 

Moderated 
Quality Score 
(40%) 

Combined 
Cost and 
Quality Score 

Final Ranking 

Contractor A 50.02 26.40 76.42 2 

Contractor B 60.00 29.42 89.32 1 

 
6.11 Full details of the evaluation of other tenderers’ returns are set out in the Part B of this 

report. The assessment concludes with a recommendation to award a construction 
contract to Contractor B (named in Part B Exempt Information). 
 

6.12 All works have been specified and measured by independent design and cost 
consultants to ensure best value for the Council against pre-determined market rates. 

 
6.13 The quantity surveyor for this project is satisfied with the pricing offered by Contractor 

B against the Pre-Tender Estimate (PTE) as summaried in Part B.    
 

7 Contribution to Strategic Outcomes 
 

7.1  The client project brief outlined that the project aims to contribute to Council’s Corporate 
Delivery Plan 2019-23. All projects commissioned by Officers of the Council are 
expected to align with this plan and will be reflected in key capital project documentation 
such as project briefs. 

 
7.2  The relevant Borough Outcome for this project is: People - our vision is a Haringey where 

strong families, strong networks and strong communities nurture all residents to live well 
and achieve their potential.  

 
7.3  It’s acknowledged the borough plan has been superseded by the Corporate Plan 

2022/23 – 2023/24. The client team are presently realigning the previous objectives of 
the Borough Plan with this. 

 
7.4 North Harringay Primary School falls into wave 1 (priority 1) of the Children’s Service’s 

asset management plan (CSAMP) and is therefore procured in accordance with the 
priorities set out in the Children’s Capital Programme.  

 
8.  Carbon and Climate Change  
 
8.1 This project will support the Borough’s carbon reduction and climate change ambition 

by delivering approx. 20.99 tCO2pa carbon reduction through the installation of energy 
efficient measures such as double glazing.  This work also benefits the Council in 
reducing the reactive maintenance requirements at the school in future by economically 
fixing the root cause of the condition issues within a single project whilst avoiding 
additional temporary repairs costs.  

 
9. Statutory Officers comments (Chief Finance Officer, Procurement, Corporate 

Governance, Equalities). 
 
9.1      Finance  

Page 12



 

 
 
Page 5 

 

9.1.1   Comments contained in Part B Exempt Information.  
 
9.2      Procurement 
 
9.2.1 Strategic Procurement (SP) note that this report relates to the approval to award a 

contract as part of the Children’s Capital Programme to undertake external condition 
works at North Harringay Primary School and to approve issuance of a letter of intent. 

 
9.2.2 A competitive tender process was undertaken in line with Contract Standing Order 

(CSO) 9.04.01(b) 
 
9.2.3 SP support the recommendation to approve the award in accordance with CSO 

9.07.01(d) and 16.02. 
 

9.3  Legal 
 
9.3.1 The Head of Legal and Governance (Monitoring Officer) has been consulted in the 

preparation of this report. 
 
9.3.2 The procurement for this contract was undertaken via the London Construction 

Programme Framework Agreement.  Framework Agreements are an approved 
procurement process under the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (Reg 33) and also 
provided for in the Council’s Contract Standing Orders (CSO 9.01.2 f) ). 

 
9.3.3   As this award is a Key Decision, a decision in respect of award would normally be taken 

by Cabinet in accordance with CSO 9.07.1 (d) (contracts valued at £500,000  or more).  
Inbetween meetings of the Cabinet, the Leader may take any such decision or may 
allocate to the Cabinet Member with the relevant portfolio  (CSO 16.02). 

 
9.3.4 A recommendation is also included for issuance of a letter of intent up to a value of 10% 

of the contract (CSO 9.07.3). 
 
9.3.5  The Head of Legal and Governance (Monitoring Officer) confirms that there are no legal 

reasons preventing the Cabinet Member for Children, Schools and Families from 
approving the recommendations in this report.   

 
9.4  Equality  

9.4.1  The Council has a Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act (2010) to have due 
regard to the need to:  

  
 Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct   

prohibited under the Act . 
 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share those protected 

characteristics and people who do not.  
 Foster good relations between people who share those characteristics and 

people who do not.   
 

Page 13



 

 
 
Page 6 

 

9.4.2 The three parts of the duty applies to the following protected characteristics: age, 
disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy/maternity, race, religion/faith, sex and 
sexual orientation. Marriage and civil partnership status applies to the first part of the 
duty.  

 

9.4.3 The proposed decision is to request approval to award a contract to Contractor B to 
undertake works to the building fabric. It was identified that the condition and suitability 
deficiencies at North Harringay Primary School are a high priority for major works due 
to issues relating to health and safety or school closure risks.  
 

9.4.4 The decision will deliver key benefits of improved educational outcomes, reduced health 
and safety risks for attendees and staff at the school, and better energy efficiency for 
the school. It is expected that this decision will lead to improved health and safety and 
accessibility for all students and members of staff. Movement around the school will not 
be compromised by ensuring doorways and corridors are not restricted.  Consideration 
would also be given to carrying more complex works during lesson times – to avoid 
disruption and accessibility limitations to students and staff.   
 

9.4.5 A number of pupils are from disadvantaged backgrounds, eligible for free school meals 
from a range of minority ethnic backgrounds and speak English as an additional 
language. North Harringay School also have a significantly higher percentage of pupils 
with special needs. Evidence shows that, overall, performance of disadvantaged pupils 
is lower than that of other pupils both at the school and nationally.  
 

9.4.6 The proposed decision is expected to support improved educational outcomes for all 
students, including those from minority ethnic backgrounds, with special education 
needs and who receive support through the pupil premium, who are more likely to face 
barriers to education. No negative consequences are identified for those who share a 
protected characteristic, and it is concluded that the works will have a wholly positive 
impact by improving the health and safety of North Harringay Primary School, including 
attendees and staff with protected characteristics under the Equality Act 2010. The 
proposed decision will therefore support equality of opportunity across all pupils. 

 
9.4.7 Specific consideration for the duration of the works will be given to the following: 
 

 Disruption to the school and the effect on children from different cultural 
backgrounds. 

 Impact of the works on the school, particularly ethnic groups. 

 Decanting of classrooms to ensure children do not miss out on levels of learning.  

 Consideration of pupils and staff mobility issues.  

 Consideration for the significantly higher percentage of pupils with special needs at 
the school who have frequent movement breaks with intervention. 

 
 9.4.8 This will be achieved by regular communication with the school to discuss and address 

their needs. Additional furniture and equipment will be provided to the school for a new 
special needs decant area for the duration of the works to ensure the organisation and 
running of the school remains consistent. 

 

Page 14



 

 
 
Page 7 

 

9.4.9 There will be no negative impact on those with disabilities and mobility requirements. 
The provision of ramps and external lifts will be considered throughout the construction 
works to maintain accessibility and minimise disruption.    

 
9.4.10  As an organisation carrying out a public function on behalf of a public body, Contractor 

B will be obliged to have due regard for the need to achieve the three aims of the Public 
Sector Equality Duty as stated above.  

 
10. Use of Appendices 
 
10.1     Appendix A – Part B 

 

11.      Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1995 

 
11.1  List of background documents:  
 

This report contains exempt and non-exempt information.  Exempt information is under 
the following categories (identified in amended Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972): Information relating to financial or business affairs of any particular person 
(including the statutory holding that information). 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is exempt

Page 17 Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is exempt

Page 21 Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Campsbourne Primary School - Phase 3 External Envelope and Building Services Improvement Works – Award of Construction Contract to complete works in a live school environment
	7 North Harringay Primary School - Urgent  Condition Works - Construction Works Contract Award
	9 EXEMPT - Campsbourne Primary School - Phase 3 External Envelope and Building Services Improvement Works – Award of Construction Contract to complete works in a live school environment
	10 EXEMPT - North Harringay Primary School - Urgent  Condition Works - Construction Works Contract Award

